CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on October 7, 2015, at 1:30 p.m., in the City of Apopka Council Chambers.

PRESENT: Mayor Joe Kilsheimer

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith Commissioner Billie Dean Commissioner Diane Velazquez Commissioner Sam Ruth

Commissioner Sam Ruth
City Attorney Kalanit Oded
City Administrator Glenn Irby

PRESS PRESENT: John Peery - The Apopka Chief

Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel

Channel 2 News

INVOCATION – Commissioner Ruth introduced Ken Ebersole of Grace Pointe Church who gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Kilsheimer said on October 2, 1967, Thurgood Marshall was sworn in as the first African-American Justice of the United States Supreme Court. Prior to his appointment, Thurgood Marshall served as the NAACP's chief counsel from 1938 to 1961, during which time he played a pivotal role in registering African-American voters throughout the south and in Central Florida. As the NAACP special counsel, Mr. Marshall served as the lead counsel for the defendants in the notorious Groveland Four case. He also successfully argued the Brown vs. Topeka Board of Education case in 1954 which ended segregation in public education. This victory gave strength to the Civil Rights Movement, eventually leading to the desegregation of public facilities and accommodations. He asked everyone to remember those men and women who, like Thurgood Marshall, dedicated their lives to the Civil Rights Movement as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance.

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION

- 1. David Moon Community Development Five Year Service Award David began working for the City on September 1, 2010, as the Planning Manager for Community Development, which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating David on his years of service to the City.
- 2. Ashley Eller Police Department/Field Services Five Year Service Award Ashley started working for the City on September 20, 2010, as a Police Officer in Field Services, which is her current position. Ashley was not present and will be presented her award another time.
- 3. Rodney Brewer Recreation/Athletics Five Year Service Award Rodney began working for the City on September 21, 2010, as the Sports Tournament Recruitment Specialist for Athletics, which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Rodney on his years of service to the City.
- 4. Lance Bruce Police Department/Field Services Fifteen Year Service Award Lance started with the City on September 2, 2000, as a Police Officer for Field Services, which is

his current position. Lance was not present and will be presented his award another time.

- 5. Charles "Mike" Cheatham Police Department/Field Services Fifteen Year Service Award Mike began with the City on September 5, 2000, as a Police Officer. On July 13, 2010, Mike was promoted to Police Sergeant for Field Services, which is his current position. Mike was not present and will be presented his award another time.
- **6.** Hommy Velez-Perez Police Department/Field Services Fifteen Year Service Award Hommy started with the City on September 5, 2000, as a Police Officer, which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Hommy on his years of service to the City.
- 7. Ronald Whetstone Fire Department/Suppression Fifteen Year Service Award Ron began working for the City on September 19, 2000, as a Fire Fighter First Class, which is his current position. Ronald was not present and will be presented his award another time.
- 8. Brian Bishop Public Services/Utility Construction & Maintenance Fifteen Year Service Award Brian started working for the City on September 25, 2000, as a Utility Service Worker II for Water Distribution Maintenance. Brian was reclassified to Utility Foreman on October 6, 2002. On May 15, 2006, Brian was promoted to Utility Construction & Maintenance Manager, which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Brian on his years of service to the City.

PRESENTATIONS

- 1. The Orange County Property Appraiser to discuss increasing property values.
 - Rick Singh gave a Power Point presentation on increasing property values and property values in the City of Apopka. A copy of his presentation is on file in the Clerk's office. He reported the City of Apopka has been a significant contributor to the Orange County tax roll and in the last year has had a 14.2% increase in market value from the last tax roll.
- 2. Walk to School Day Proclamation Mayor Kilsheimer read the proclamation for Walk to School Day for Rock Springs Elementary, Lovell Elementary, and Apopka Elementary. He then presented it to Brian Burns, Principal of Rock Springs Elementary.

CONSENT AGENDA

- 1. Approve the minutes from the workshop City Council meeting held on August 26, 2015, at 1:30 p.m.
- 2. Approve the minutes from the special City Council meeting held on August 26, 2015, at 4:20 p.m.
- 3. Approve the minutes from a special City Council meeting held on September 9, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.
- 4. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on September 16, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.
- 5. Approve the minutes from a special City Council Budget Hearing meeting held on September 23, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.

- 6. Approve the minutes from a special City Council meeting held on September 23, 2015, immediately following the Budget Hearing.
- 7. Authorize issuance of a Peddlers Permit, to be valid for one year, to Byron Tobias, of Edward Jones & Co., to provide financial advisory services door-to-door within the City of Apopka.
- 8. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Facility Agreement for the AHA Players to use the Community Center and Fran Carlton Building.
- 9. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the VFW Lease agreement for the City Community Center.
- 10. Authorize the purchase, in the amount of \$325,920.00, of seven ambulance stretchers and the power load restraint system.
- 11. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property and removal of property assets from the city asset list.
- 12. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Motorola System upgrade agreements along with associated annual maintenance agreement.
- 13. Authorize \$12,500.00 expenditure from law enforcement trust funds for investigative drug buys and undercover operations.
- 14. Authorize the presentation of a service weapon to retiring police Sergeant Robert Allen.

Commissioner Velazquez requested Item #9 be pulled from the Consent Agenda.

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, reported staff has negotiated a contract with the VFW, subject to Council's approval. He advised the only thing lacking at this time is proof of liability insurance due to alcohol sales. He recommended tabling this item at this time.

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to table Item #9 to the next Council meeting. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve the remaining 13 items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

DEPARTMENT REPORTS, BIDS, GRANTS, AND AGREEMENTS

1. Acceptance of the Grant Award for Police Body Worn Camera Program and request to match funds.

Mr. Irby advised the Police Department applied for a grant in 2014 from Homeland Security for body cameras. We were awarded \$43,000 with a match requirement of \$43,000. Staff recommends approval with matching funds.

Suzanne Kidd spoke congratulating the Police Department for applying for and receiving this grant. She recommended a policy be developed, if there was not one in place, to which Chief McKinley advised there is a body camera policy and it was submitted with the grant.

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to accept the grant and approve the matching funds. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

2. Acceptance of the Grant Award for (8) Lifepak ALS Monitor/Defibrillators and request to match funds.

Mr. Irby reported this grant was submitted and 8 ALS monitor/defibrillators were approved in the amount of \$254,546 with a match of 10%, which is \$25,454. Staff recommends approval.

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to approve accepting the grant and approve matching funds. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

LEGISLATIVE: ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2550 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - Monthly residential sanitation rate increase of \$1, in order to acquire a new fully automated truck every two years. The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2550

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 66, "SOLID WASTE," ARTICLE II, "MUNICIPAL REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE," DIVISION 2, "RESIDENTIAL ESTABLISHMENTS," SECTION 66-68. "FEE SCHEDULE – RESIDENTIAL"; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to adopt Ordinance No. 2550. Motion carried by a 4-1 vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye and Commissioner Dean voting nay.

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2445 - FIRST READING - Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, Chapter 63, "Retirement Systems," Article IV, "Police Officers' Retirement System," Section 63-105, "Contributions", and Section 63-106, "Benefit Amounts and Eligibility." The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2445

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 63, "RETIREMENT SYSTEMS", ARTICLE IV, "POLICE OFFICERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM," SECTION 63-105, "CONTRIBUTIONS," AND SECTION 63-106, "BENEFIT AMOUNTS AND ELIGIBILITY," PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mr. Irby said the Police and Fire Departments both wish to amend their current retirement system. The Police Department would like to amend their multiplier from 3.6% currently for the first ten years of service and 4% thereafter. They will be using funds in the plan that have been set aside for several years which is paid by the state directly to the City for enhancement of benefits. These funds are designated parked funds, and they will be applied to the cost to increase this multiplier and also the plan members have agreed to increase their member contribution from 7% per payroll to 9%. This reduces the amount of funds the city would have to make up and per the actuary evaluation there is no cost to the city. The plan members were polled being provided three options and voted unanimously to accept this proposal.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth to approve Ordinance No. 2445 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2451 - FIRST READING - Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, Chapter 63, "Retirement Systems," Article III, "Firefighters' Retirement System," Section 63-65, "Contributions", and Section 63-66, "Benefit Amounts and Eligibility." The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2451

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, CHAPTER 63, "RETIREMENT SYSTEMS," ARTICLE III, "FIREFIGHTERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM," SECTION 63-65, "CONTRIBUTIONS," AND SECTION 63-66, "BENEFIT AMOUNTS AND ELIGIBILITY," PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Kilsheimer said this is the same with the plan members voting overwhelmingly in support.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve Ordinance No. 2451 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2453 - FIRST READING - Amending Chapter 22 "Buildings and Building Regulations," Apopka Code of Ordinances, Section 22-37, "Amendments. The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2453

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 22, "BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS," ARTICLE II, "BUILDING CODE," SECTION 22-37, "AMENDMENTS" OF THE CITY OF APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, IN COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 553, F.S.; PROVIDING FOR ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL AMENDMENTS TO THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Ray Marsh, Building Official, said this is the amendment section for Chapter 1 of the Florida Building Codes so that the City can be consistent with the state standard. He advised this is consistent throughout Central Florida and all jurisdictions adopt this.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve Ordinance No. 2453 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2454 – FIRST READING - CODE OF ORDINANCES - Amending certain sections of Chapter 6, "Alcoholic Beverages" to provide for restrictions on possession or consumption in public places and/or on City parks or on City-owned property; providing for restrictions on consumption in vehicles; providing for location of sales on City-owned property; providing for possession in parking areas and lots. The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2454

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA; AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 6, "ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES" OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; PROVIDING FOR RESTRICTIONS ON POSSESSION OR

CONSUMPTION IN PUBLIC PLACES AND/OR ON CITY PARKS OR ON CITY-OWNED PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR RESTRICTIONS ON CONSUMPTION IN VEHICLES; PROVIDING FOR LOCATION OF SALES ON CITY-OWNED PROEPRTY; PROVIDING FOR POSSESSION IN PARKING AREAS AND LOTS; AND PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

David Moon, Planning Manager, said as the City has grown over the years, there have been an increasing number of nonprofit community organizations and for profit businesses that use City properties for special events or business activities and with these activities have requested to serve or sell alcohol beverages. Because of that increase in activity, staff and the City Attorney's office have reviewed our alcoholic beverage ordinance and are recommending changes regarding the location of the sales. He advised there was one minor scrivener's error under Section 6-7821, the word "property" needs to be added after the verbiage "city owned".

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve Ordinance No. 2454 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2455 - FIRST READING - Amendment to Chapter 38 "Emergency Service" Article III for the Public Safety Radio Amplification System. The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2455

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 38, "EMERGENCY SERVICES," ARTICLE III, "PUBLIC SAFETY 800 MHZ RADIO AMPLIFICATION SYSTEM," BY AMENDING THE TITLE; BY AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS: SECTION 38-46 "PUBLIC **SAFETY** 800 **MHZ RADIO COVERAGE** REQUIREMENT"; SECTION 38-47 "AMPLIFICATION SYSTEMS **ALLOWED"**; SECTION 38-48 "ACCEPTANCE PROCEDURE"; SECTION 38-49 "ANNUAL TEST PROCEDURE"; 38-50 "TEST **AND SECTION** RECORDS **TECHNICAL** DOCUMENTATION"; SECTION 38-53 "FEES"; SECTION 38-54 "PENALTIES"; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTION TO THE CITY CLERK, FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Captain Fernandez said this was accommodating our system as it has changed, clarifying the language, testing, and how acceptance would be put in place. He advised this ordinance

was originally done in 2007 and it allows public safety to have good communication within a building.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve Ordinance No. 2455 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

7. ORDINANCE NO. 2456 - FIRST READING - Amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Apopka, Chapter 30, "Cemeteries", by repealing the entire chapter in its entirety and adopting a new Chapter 30, "Cemeteries". The City Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2456

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 30 - CEMETERIES, IN ITS ENTIRETY, PROVIDING FOR REPEAL OF EXISTING CEMETERY REGULATIONS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Linda Goff, City Clerk, advised Chapter 30 in the Code of Ordinances only addressed the need for a burial permit, sell of lots, including an occasional increase of fees. Council has never adopted an ordinance that addresses the full cemetery operations, policy and procedures, and rules and regulations. The last rules and regulations were adopted by Council in 1985 and are very minimal. This ordinance will allow for the enforcement of the rules and regulations for the cemetery.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.

Tenita Reid said for the most part she agrees with the content, but said this was a very sensitive issue for those who have loved ones buried in the cemetery. She stated we did not need to limit flowers.

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing.

Mayor Kilsheimer said the ordinance is drafted in order to give staff the authority to work and address situations that become too extreme. He stated staff understands and are sensitive to the families involved and will act appropriately.

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve Ordinance No. 2445 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

8. Resolution NO. 2015-23 authorizing the Mayor or his designee Jay Davoll to execute the new FDOT Contract, and authorizing the city to provide right-of-way maintenance on US 441 AND SR 436. The City Clerk read the title as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-23

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF APOPKA AND THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF STATE ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY BY THE CITY ON STATE ROAD 500 FROM BENBOW COURT TO ORANGE AVENUE IN PLYMOUTH, AND STATE ROAD 436 FROM STATE ROAD 500 EAST TO THE SEMINOLE COUNTY LINE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mr. Irby said these were gateways to the City and the City would prefer to maintain these areas.

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve Resolution No. 2015-23. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye.

QUASI-JUDICIAL: ORDINANCES AND SITE APPROVALS

ORDINANCE NO. 2452 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION CHANGE OF ZONING – Cantero Holdings, LLC, from AG (Agriculture) to AG-E (Agriculture Estates) for property located east of Golden Gem Road, north of Ponkan Road. (Parcel ID #s: 24-20-27-0000-00-097; 24-20-27-0000-00-098; 24-20-27-0000-00-100; 24-20-27-0000-00-101; 24-20-27-0000-00-102; 24-20-27-0000-00-103; 24-20-27-0000-00-104; 24-20-27-0000-00-105) The Clerk read the title as follows:

ORDINANCE NO. 2452

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING FROM AG (AGRICULTURE) TO AGE (AGRICULTURE ESTATES) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF GOLDEN GEM ROAD, NORTH OF PONKAN ROAD, COMPRISING 81.39 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing and witnesses were sworn in.

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazequez to adopt Ordinance No. 2452. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Dean voting aye.

ITEMS NOT REQUIRING COUNCIL ACTION

 Public Services (Solid Waste Division) - Resident commendation letter on garbage pickup service. - Mayor Kilsheimer advised the City received a complimentary letter regarding sanitation workers.

MAYOR'S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported he received a letter from the Central Florida Free thought Society requesting to give the invocation. He advised they will be invited to give the invocation at the next Council meeting.

City Attorney Oded said there was a Supreme Court case decided wherein a small town in upstate New York was sued where part of the problem was only representatives of Christian denominations gave invocations at City Council meetings. The Supreme Court ruled it was fine to have invocations, but you cannot be selective and should be opened to all expressions of religious thought.

OLD BUSINESS

1. COUNCIL

Commissioner Arrowsmith inquired about the traffic light at Lester and Plymouth Sorrento Roads.

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the city needs to acquire right-of-way parcels in this area, which they are currently in negotiations for same.

Discussion ensued regarding alignment of the intersection, as well as various options available for obtaining rights-of-ways.

2. PUBLIC

Tenita Reid expressed concern regarding the Town Center proposal and moving of Highland Manor.

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the City is still waiting on a development agreement and there are no specifics at this time. He advised there was no certainty regarding the moving of Highland Manor and this was still under discussion. Commissioner Arrowsmith added that the tree in that location should be protected and added in the development agreement.

NEW BUSINESS

1. COUNCIL

a. Proposed workshop on the implementation of a National League of Cities Program.

Mr. Irby advised he had been approached by a representative of the National League of Cities regarding an insurance program on utility lines. This insurance is for the citizens, but the City will need to embrace the idea. He explained the citizens can purchase a policy that will cover the line coming from the water meter to the house and insurance on the entire sewer lateral from inside the house to the main, as well as whole house plumbing insurance. He stated this insurance is very affordable. The National League of Cities has requested to appear before the City Council in a workshop setting to discuss this idea.

Linda Laurendeau inquired if this was going to be offered to all people who receive Apopka water, or only the citizens.

Mr. Irby advised anyone who is attached to the city system.

b. Pre-Agenda workshop

Mr. Irby said it has been expressed that some Commissioners would like to hold premeeting workshops. He advised there is an issue on a meeting time with the first meeting of the month.

Following discussion, it was the consensus of the City Council to hold pre-meeting workshops on an as need basis.

2. PUBLIC - There was no new business public.

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 3:03 p.m.

	/s/
	Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor
ATTEST:	•
/s/	
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk	